

Minutes of the meeting of the **Cabinet** held in Committee Rooms, East Pallant House on Tuesday 11 July 2023 at 9.30 am

Members Present Mr J Brown (Vice-Chairman), Mrs T Bangert, Mr B Brisbane, Ms J Brown-Fuller, Mr A Moss (Chairman) and Ms H Desai

Members Absent Mr D Betts and Mr M Chilton

In attendance by invitation

Officers Present

14 Chair's Announcements

Apologies were received from Cllr Betts and Cllr Chilton.

15 Approval of Minutes

The minutes of the meeting held on 6 June 2023 were agree as a correct record.

16 **Declarations of Interests**

There were no declarations of interest.

17 **Public Question Time**

The following public questions were asked with the answers to follow:

Question from: Ann Stewart

Last month, in reply to a question from me, you told me that you are working with stakeholders and partners to develop an integrated transport hub, but implied that the current bus station was not part of these plans as this is owned by Stagecoach, the bus company. I assume that Stagecoach is either a stakeholder or an essential partner in developing local transport policy. Would you not agree that an attractive and convenient bus station with a comfortable waiting room, would make people more prepared to use public transport rather than their cars? Do you have any plans to work with Stagecoach to improve the bus station, and integrate this with the nearby railway station, to provide a proper and convenient transport hub for Chichester

Answer from Cllr Moss

Ann

Thank you for your question. The answer to your question last time needs clarification.

The Bus station site is owned by Chichester District Council with a long lease to Stagecoach. Stagecoach is responsible for any repairs or improvements to the buildings on this site.

The Bus station site is an integral part of the Southern Gateway Regeneration project, and the Council is currently working with Stagecoach and stakeholders and external partners to bring forward a transport hub that meets the needs of the local community and visitors to the district that is supported by Stagecoach and Network Rail.

The current proposal would provide a new maintenance garage for Stagecoach on Terminus Road with the new bus stop provision focused around a transport hub linked to the Railway Station, plans for which still need to be finalised.

As part of the wider Southern Gateway project the intention is to redevelop the existing bus station and bus garage sites.

The new administration is anxious to ensure that public transport is fully supported in our District and enhanced to suit the developing requirements for sustainable transport.

Please do look at the Southern Gateway Proposals as outlined on the District Council website.

Question from: Andrew Sargent

Please can CDC arrange a meeting with Michael Gove to request the housing number (derived from the Standard Method) be reduced by 70% to reflect that 70% of the land area is in the SDNP?

I know a deputation met the disgraced previous junior Housing Minister Mr Pincher and their concerns were dismissed by him. Now is the time to go back and ask the above question to the Right Honourable Michael Gove.

Answer from Cllr Bill Brisbane

Thank you for your question.

The housing need figure for the whole of the district is calculated using the government's standard method and is a total of 763 dwellings per annum. The latest Housing and Economic Development Needs Assessment (HEDNA) prepared for the South Downs National Park set out a need for 125 homes per annum in the SDNP area of the district. This need is then discounted from the standard method

figure for the district, to provide a local housing need figure for the Chichester plan area of 638 dwellings per annum (763 less 125).

Given that the identified SDNPA housing need has already been discounted from the overall district need, there is no basis on which the Council can assert that a further reduction for the Chichester Plan area to take account of the national park is required.

It should also be noted that the proposed housing requirement in the Submission version of the emerging local plan is 575 dwellings per annum, i.e., somewhat less than the Council's full identified need.

18 Chichester District Council Annual Report 2022-23

The Leader of the Council provided a brief overview of the annual report.

Members praised the work of the previous Environment Panel on environmental issues. Members also enquired about repairs to the pavements and how that would affect the falls prevention service. The Leader of the Council responded to the issue of the pavements and stated they are working closely with the Leader of West Sussex County Council on this matter.

RESOLVED:

1. That the Council's performance and achievements over the last year as detailed in the Annual Report 2022-2023 be reviewed by the Cabinet and be recommended that the report be received by Council.

19 Public Conveniences Refurbishment

The Cabinet member for Growth and Place introduced the report.

Members enquired about the opening hours of the toilets and asked if they were flexible. Officers responded by stating that as part of the contract with the organisation that open and close the toilets; flexibility was an option. Additionally, when an event occurs, the council do ask the organisation to delay the closure of the sites. Members noted that the signage for the Tower Street toilets could be better presented so that visitors would find it easier to locate the public convenience. Members emphasised the importance of the Tower Street toilets as there is a variety of different people that need immediate access to public conveniences. This includes both parents of young children and the elderly.

RESOLVED:

- 1. That Cabinet recommends to Council to release an additional £241,000 as set out in Appendix one from general reserve funds for the refurbishment of the public conveniences at Priory Park, East Beach Selsey, Bosham Lane and Market Road.
- 2. That Cabinet accepts that the cost of refurbishment of the Tower Street, toilets are uneconomic and delegates authority to the Director of Growth and Place to progress options for the Tower Street site including for its demolition and the provision of a modern modular toilet and the reuse of the remainder of the site, with a full report to be brought back to Cabinet.

20 **Commissioning of a Regeneration Strategy for Chichester City**

The Leader of the Council introduced this item.

Members stated that they hoped the Regeneration Strategy would be suitable enough for more young people to move to Chichester. Members also praised the strategy for allowing more green growth. Members stressed the importance of including additional affordable housing, particularly to entice more young people to Chichester. The importance of working collaboratively with the city council to create a shared vison for this project was also mentioned as an important facet.

RESOLVED:

- 1. That Cabinet approves the Initial project proposal document (IPPD) in Appendix 1 to commission a consultancy company to undertake the development of a regeneration strategy for Chichester City.
- 2. That Cabinet approves **to allocate** £45,000 from reserves to cover the estimated cost of the commission.
- That the Director of Growth and Place be encouraged to ensure that Chichester City Council be consulted in this matter and other Stakeholders in the IPPD.

21 Asylum Seeker Grant Funding

The Cabinet member for Communities and Wellbeing introduced this report.

RESOLVED

1. That Cabinet approves delegated authority to allocate grant funding for dispersal of asylum seekers, in line with paragraphs 4.1 and 4.2 of the report, to the Divisional Manager for Communities and Customer Services following consultation with the Cabinet member for Communities.

22 Outside Body Appointment - iESE Transformation Limited and PUSH update

Nicholas Bennet, Divisional Manager for Democratic Services provided an update on the PUSH appointments.

RESOLVED

- 1. That Cllr Adrian Moss be appointed as the Council's representative and Cllr Jonathan Brown be appointed as the Council's deputy representative to iESE Transformation Limited for the year 2023-2024.
- 2. That the update on the position concerning there being no voting arrangements for the PUSH appointment be noted.

23 Late Items

There were none.

24 Exclusion of the Press and Public

25 Lease arrangements at Bracklesham Bay

The Leader of the Council provided a brief overview of the item.

The Leader of the Council invited Councillor Ballantyne, Ward member for The Witterings, to provide comments. Councillor Ballantyne stated that this was a good opportunity to support a thriving local business. Councillor Ballantyne also stated that it was an opportunity to bring some economic development and refurbish the toilets.

RESOLVED

1. That Cabinet agree to granting a new lease to the current café operators upon completion of their intended investment in and development of the facility, as set out in Appendix 1.

The meeting ended at 11.04 am

CHAIRMAN

Date: